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METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 81 009 138 149

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Mewroland Ausiralis Limited (“the compeny”) and of the
consolidated entity, being the company and its controlled entities, for the year ended 30 June 2009 and the auditor’s report thereon.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the company at any time during or since the financial year are:

Eddie Lee (Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director) Aped 62
B.E.Civil B.5¢.Dip.Bldg.Sc. (Sydney)

Mr Lee is a praduate of Sydney University majoring in Civil Engincering and has extensive experience in corporate management. He is
the Australian representative of several substantial Asian investment groups and maintains a wide network in the Asian business area. Mr
Lee is also a director of Gullewa Limited, a company listed on the ASX. He has wide experience in the fields of civil engineering, praject
management, censtruction, finance and equity markets.

Member of Audit Committee, Director since 1994,

Frank Shien (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) Aged 57
BA (Lon)

Mr Shien has extensive construction and property development experience and has business assoefates in Indonesia, Malaysia, Hong Kong
and China. Mr Shien is a direclor of a number of property companies and during the last thirteen years has been successfully developing
commercial and residential propesty in Sydney.

Director since 1997.

John Wardman {Independent Non-Exccutive Director) Aged 49
B.Econ, FAICD

Mr Wardman has extensive experience in finance, including capital markets, corparate development and stockbroking., He holds a Degree
in Economics from Macquarie University and is a Fellow of the Australian Institate of Company Directars.

Member of Audit Committze. Director since 1996.

Steam Leung (Independent Non-Executive Director) Aged 50
LREA

Mr Leung has 20 years experience in real estate in Australia, is 2 Licensed Real Estate Agent and Auctianeer, and is a Director of Celliers
International {NSW) Pty Limited. He has extensive experience in sales and marketing of commercial properties and residential projects.

Mr Leung has an extremely strong involvement with the lacal Chibese community and is well connected to overseas Asian investors and

developers. He is also one of the founders of the Australian NSW Chinese Real Estate Agent Society and is an important senior member
of the Colliers Jardine’s International team.

Director since 1497,
Da Cheng Zhang (Independent Non-Executive Director) Aged 55

Mr Zhang is of Chinese nationality. He is president of the HIT Group, which has two companies listed on the China Stock Exchange, one
in Shanghai and the other in Shenzhen. Mr Zhang is also the vice-principal of the Harbin Institute of Technology in Harbin, PRC.

Director since February 2000,

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year 1o the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Heten Lay was appainted to the position of company secretary in January 2003, Ms Lay is alse employed in the administrative and
accaunting functions of the company,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the consolidated entity during the financial year were property development, construction and sales; property
rental; residential strafa management; and investment and financial services,

There were ro significant citanges in the nature of the activities of the consolidated entity during the year.

OPERATING RESULTS
The consolidated profit of the group after providing for income tax and eliminating minarity interest amounted to $538,734 (2008:
31,612,507).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Review of Financial Results

The consolidated entity is continuing ils stralegic direction in property development, management and related services. The loss before tax
for the 2009 finaneial year is $111,599 compared to the previous year's profit of $2.74 million. Profit after tax and minority interesi is
$538,734.

The main activities of the Group for the financial year have been the improvement in the management of the shopping centers and the
completion of the building of Greenway SupaCenta development, The revenue from the Company’s core activities, i.e. property rental and
management, has increased by 21.4% from $4.7 million to $5.8 million,

Utilising its various affiliations with, and knowledge of, business in China, the Company has sought joint venture investment oppartuaities
with major enterprises in China. This has resulted in o joint venture with a major Chinese state-owned enterprise to acquire and develop
land in Haymarket, Sydney.

DK Engineering Pty Limited, a wholly-owned subsidinry was incorporated during the year to provide steel engineering related services
and products to industries.

Due to various negative economic factors, in particular the global credit tightening and the resulting downturn of the property and financial
market, the Company has cacried out a cost reduction program, The restructuring of the Group's facilities management and import sales
operations have resulted in sipgnificant reductions in employee expenses for the year of $876,000.

The restructuring of the Group's operations, the optimal utilisation of its human resources, together with the major iavestment and
development operations enlered into, the Company is confident of an improvement in the Group's results in the next financial year.

Property Investment and Rental

The Greenway Supacenta

The construction of the Greeaway SupaCenta was completed during the year. The Certificate of Occupation for the whole Centre was
obtained in July 2009. A mujor tenani, Officeworks commenced trading in March 2009 following the obteining of the Certificate of
Occupation for the stage one completion of the Centre. Leased premises were nlso handed over 10 Fernwood Gym, with trading expected
to commence in Navember 2009. A conditional lease agreement hes been executed for the lease of 15,000 sq.m in the SupaCenta to a
international company involved in the sale of building materials. The Company is confident that the Centre will be substantially leased by
the end of 2009,

Wenthworthville Mall, Wentwerthville

Refurbishment work commenced shartly after the fire in July 2008. The refurbishment work and the rebuilding of the food court were
completed in August 2009. The tenants that were affected by the fire and incoming tenants are in the process of fitting ot the shops, The
anchor tenant Franklins hos also taken this opportunity to re-[it the supermarket with their new concept's store, The Mall is having a re-
launch campaign on the 17th of October 2009 with part of the street closed for re-launch activities. 'The refurbishment to the Mall and the
consequential loss of rent was covered by the Group’s insurance policies.

Following the refurbishments, The Mall will now present to the market as a new Mall and the Company is coafident that this will greatly
enhance its trading environment.
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Campbelltown Square Shopping Centre

The Campbelltown Square Shopping Cenltre has been affected by the economic dewnturn resulting in some tenant vacancies, The
Company is working with both local and nation wide agents with the view 1a have those vacancies tenanted. The Company is alsa looking
into the re-development potential of the property.

Property Development

Metreland through its investment in a partially owned subsidiary Trust has entered into a joint venture with a Chinese state-owned
enterprise — The Beljing Cupital Development Helding (Group) Co. Lid to acquire & property in Haymarket, Sydney for a retail and
residential devetopment. The joint venture also provides for Metraland to jointly act as Development Manager. The date of completion for
the acquisition of the property is in November 2009 und the DA for a complex that comprises 3 levels of retail and approximately 220
units of residential apartment has been submitied 0 Sydney City Council.

Property Management

Stratawide Management Py Lintited

Stratawide, in which Metroland has a 55% interest, has entered into its seventh year of operations. It has now secured services as a strata
manager for over 30 blocks of residential/eommercial buildings, and has produced a healthy profit for the 2009 financial year which has
contributed to the performance of the Groop.

Property Related Services

Metroland Censtructions Pty Limited has successfully completed the building of the Greenway SupaCenta at budget. It has for the last oae
and half years built up a creditable team of people.

DK Metro Engineering Pty Ltd which specializes in steel supply and steel construction has had a successful start securing 4 contracts for
the supply and construction of steel throughout Sydney.

Metroland Funds Management Pty Lid was incorparated os a wholly owned subsidiary and has been granted an Australian Financial
Services Licence for dealing with wholesale clients. It is the manager for Metroland Development Fund Trust which invest in the
Haymarket development project.

Future Opporiunities
Metroland is continuing to seck opportunities to further strengthen its revenue base and to achieve further growth.
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Review of Financial Condition

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

RESULTS 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
$'000 §'000 $'000 000 F'0oC
Revenue from sale of property & 7 546 17141 24,053 5.009
construction sarvices ! ! ' ! 1,203
Rental and management revenue 5,785 4,766 3,344 3,654 3,092
Cther ravenue 134 217 87 a5 169
Group Turngver 13,465 22,054 27,484 8,698 4,464
Net profit after 1ax and minarity inlerests 539 1.612 3.006 734 493
Talal assels B5,843 65,872 56,563 54,397 55,981
Total lizbilities 64,159 46,040 38,416 46,761 42,780
Centributed equity 14,966 13,370 13,197 11,692 11,532
Retzined pralit 6,475 £,024 4,950 1,944 1,689
Minorily interests 243 224 - . -
Tolal equity 21,684 19,632 18,147 13,638 13,221
Dividend paid B 533 - 479 473
Income tax axpense/{benatit) (745) 903 1,553 282 (177)
PER SHARE
Earning (cents) 0.47 1.50 3.08 0.77 0.54
Dividend (cents) -fully iranked - - 0.5 0.5 0.5
Mel tangible assels per share {cenis) 18.0 18.2 17.00 14.2 13.9
STATISTICS
Return on equity 2.5% B.21% 16.56% 5.38% 3.73%
Netl iangible assels per share (cenis) 18.0 18.2 17.0¢ 14.2 3.9
Number of sharsholders B77 688 725 785 B41
Employees 16 20 18 6 5
Group turnover per employee 841,563 1,104,700 1,526,888 1,448 667 892,800

SHARE PRICE (cents)

Last sale 7 7 i4.5 15 155

High for year 16.5 16.5 18.5 15.5 23.0

Low far year 7 7 12,0 0.0 14.0
DIVIDENDS

There were no dividends paid or declared by the company to members since the end of the previous financial year.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

Significant changes in the state of affairs of the cansalidated enlity during the financial year were as follows:-

The consolidated entity’s total assels increased by 320.17 million to $85.84 million {2008: $65.67 millian} aver the year. The increase in
total assets principally comprised:-

* increase in investment property by $22.88 million (including redevelopment of the Greenway Supacenta)

& Decrease in cash at bank by $1.04 million

® Increase in trade and other receivables

® Decrease in investments accounted for under the equity method {now accounted for as a Joint Venture or 100% subsidiary)

Total ligbilities of the consolidated entity have increased by $18.12 million during the year to $64.16 million (2008: $46.04 million}. This
increase is principally due to:-

® Increase in borrowings by $18.73 million ta finance the redevelopment of properties held for investment.

The consolidated entity's equity increased by $2.05 million over the year which is primarily as a result of the net profit derived during the
year of 539k plus an increase in contributed equity of $1.587m from capital raising,.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

On 8 September 2009 Metroland Funds Management Pty Limited (wholly owned suhsidiary) was granted an Australian Financial Services
Licence,

On 16 September 2009 the Group announced that Metroland Funds Manapement Pty Limited had entered into Heads of Agreement with
Aushao (NSW) Pty Ltd and Heng Ji Australia Pty Limited (o acquire 61-79 Quay Street, Haymarket for a consideration of $38.38m for
development. A unit trust called Metro Plaza Central Unit Trust will be established with Ausbao kaving 51% interest, Metroland Funds
Management Ply Limited 25% and Heng } Australia Pty Limited 24%. Aushao (N5W) Pty Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Beijing Capital Developmenis Holdings Group co. Lid which is the largest developer in Beijing and the fourth largest in China.

No other matters or cireumstances have arisen since 30 June 2009 that have significantly affected, or muy significantly affect;
(a) the consolidated entity’s operations in future financial years, or

(b) the results of those operations in future financial years, ot

(c) the consolidated entity's state of affairs in future financiat years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

The consolidaled entity will continue to pursue opportunities in the rental and commercial property investment and development sectors,
and 1o continue to pursue the company's palicy of increasing revenue and profitability during the next financial year,

Further information as to likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of those operations in
subsequent financial years has not been inchuded in this report because, the directors believe, on reasonshble grounds, that 1o include such
information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the company.
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MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The number of directors’ meetings, including meetings of commitiees ol directors and nsmber of meetings attended by each of the
directors of the company during the financial year are:

Director i Board Mestings - Audit Committec

_ N _”_.Held__ ..... Attended . Hed _ Attended
MrE Lee. 4 (N 2
Mr S Leung 4 4 2 2

Mr F Shie

2

Mr § Wardman

MrDCZhang -

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the zudit committee during the year comprised three independent non-executive directars, Mr Steam Leung, Mr John
Wardman and Mr Eddie Lee

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

The consolidated entity’s operations are nat subject 1o any significant environmental repulation under either Commonwealth or Stale
tegislation in relation to ils property development activities. The directors are not aware of any significant breaches during the period
covered by this report.

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

As provided by the Constitution of the company, the remuneration of directors is determined by shareholders. The broad remuneration
policy is to ensure the remuneration package properly reflects the directors and senior executives duties and responsibilities and level af
performance.

There are currently no performance-based or equity-based remuneration to directors and senior exeeutives based on the performance of the
consolidated entity.

Details of the nature and amount of each major element of the emoluments of each director of the company and each of the five executive
officers of the consolidated entity receiving the highest emofumenss are as follows:-
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Base Remuneration Termination Superannuation Total Remuneration
{salary & fecs) benefits Contributions $
8 3 $
2009 2008 2009 2008 200% 2008 2009 2008
% 5 b § $ $ 3 %
Directors
Executive
Frank Shien 119,400 123,147 - - - - 119,409 123,147
Andrew Tooch  (resigned -
16/3/08 - 124,807 - 110,000 - 9,703 244,510
Non-executive
Eddie Lee 12,000 12,000 - - - - 12,000 12,000
John Wardman 12,600 10,920 - - - 1,080 12,000 12,000
Steam Leung 24,000 24,000 - - M - 24,000 24,000
Ray Kellerman - resigned
23/4/08 - 51,667 - - - 51,667
Executive Officers
(excluding directors)
Tjing Hong Ong 130,000 130,000 - - 11,700 10,050 £41,700 140,050
Anthony Maroon 154,567 140,000 - - 12,600 12,600 167,167 152,600
George Daoud - 129,136 - - - 2,350 - 186,352
Paul Weng - 113,333 - - - 11,264 - 140,400
Lincoln Wong — resigned
30/4/08 - 178,333 5,769 - 9941 - 123,254
David Feldman ~ resigned
May 08 - 80,769 90,000 - 5,829 - 176,598
451,976 1,118,112 - 205,76% 24,300 62,737 476,276 1,386,618
SHARE OPTIONS

Unissued shares under Option
At the date of this repart, there are no unissued ardinary shares of the company under option. During the year 15,744,774 share options
expired. The options expired on 28 May 2009 and had an exercise price of $.26

DIRECTORS INTERESTS

The relevant interest of each director in the shares of the companies within the consolidated entity and other related bodies corporate, as
notified by the directors to the Apstratian Stock Exchange in accardance with section 205G(1) of the Corperations Act 2001, at the date af
this repart is as follows:-

METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED

Ordinary Shares Options over Ordinary
Shares
Mr. E Lee 527,500 -
Mx. S Leung 1,960,547 -
Mr. F Shien 12,618,610 -
Mr. ] Wardman 1,436,033 -
Mr D C Zhang 9,600,000 -
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INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF OFTICERS AND AUDITORS

During the financial year, Metroland Australia Limited paid a premium of $12,540 10 insure the directors and officers of the company and
its controlled entities. The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurzed in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be
brought against the officers in their capacity as officers of the entities in the Group, and any other payments arising from liabilities
incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings. This does not include such liabilities that arise from conduct involving a
wilful breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the offieers of their position or of information to gain advantage for themselves
or someone else or ta cause deisiment to the company, It is ot possible 1o apportion the premium between amounts relating 1o the
insurance for legal costs and those refating 1o other lisbilities.

No indemnities have been given for the auditor of the company during ar since the end of the financial year.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF COMPANY

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to which the
Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for alf or any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party ta any such proceedings.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

During the yeur an assaciate of Gould Ralph Assurance, the campany’s auditor, performed certain other services in addition to their
statutory duties,

The board has considered the non-zudit services provided during the year by the auditor and is satisfied that the pravision of those non-
audit services by the auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise the auditar independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 for the reason that the non-audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating 1o auditor independence as st aut
in Professional Statement F1:- Professional Independence, as they did not involve reviewing ar auditing the auditor's own werk, acting in
a management of decision-making capacity for the company, acting as an advocate for the company or jointly sharing risks and rewards.

A copy of the auditor’s independence decluration as required under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is included in the
Directors” Report, at page [0,

Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the company, Gould Ralph Assurance and it’s related entities for audit and non-audit services
provided during the year are set out below.,

Conselidated
2009 2008
3 %

Statutery audit:
« Audit and review of financial reporis 93,678 79,380
Services other tlan statutory audit
Other services:
- Tuxation compliance services 5,138 6,152
- Share registry 13,643 13,724

18,781 19,876

10
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ROUNDING OFF

The company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 and in accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the financial
statements and Direciors’ Repart have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollar, unless otherwise stated.

Dated at Sydney this 30" day of September 2009,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

o

Frank Shien
Divectar

11



ASSURANCE

Chartered Accountants

ABN 74 832 161 298

Level 42, Suncorp Placa

259 George Straet

Sydney NSW 2000

Australia

T: +61 2 9032 3000

Fow3t 2 9032 3088

= mail@gouldrsioh.eom.a
30 September 2009 W1 v goidraiph.Com. au

The Board of Directors
Metroland Australia Limited

Level 4, 45 Murray Street
PYRMONT NSW 2009

Dear Members of the Board

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

As lead auditor for the audit of Metroland Australia Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008, | declare that,
io the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

= No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to
the audit; and

* No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Metroland Australia Limited and any entities it controlled during the year.

Yours faithfully
GQULD RALPH ASSURANCE

!

L ALCOLM BEARD M.Com., F.C.A.
Partner
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Consolidated The Compuny
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
000 $°000 $'000 000
Continuing eperations:
Revenue from sales 2 7,546 17,111 1,500 1,300
Rental and management revenue 2 5,785 4,764 487 136
Other revenues 2 134 217 4,498 4.334
Total Revenue 2 13,465 22,084 6,485 5,970
Cost of sales (7,610) (i4,556) - -
Borrowing costs 3(b) (2,435} (2,32]) (202) (212)
Property expenses (832) (1.533) - -
Directors fees {119} {202) (119) (202)
Employee benefits expenses (1,095) (1.971) (443) 797
Professional and consultancy fees {340) (565) (258) {168)
Impairment of receivables 3(b) (164) (157) (955) {1,362)
Depreciation n (55} (54) (26)
Other eapenses from ordinary actvities (665) (353) {162) (272)
Net gain/{loss) from changes in the fair value
of investment properties {300y (422) - -
Share of net profit of joint vensure entities
accounted for using the equity method 25 114 2,980 . -
Profit before income tax (112) 2,739 4,292 2931
Income tax (expense)/benefit 4(n) 745 (303) 699 (361)
Prolit for the year 633 1,836 4,991 2,070
Profit atiributable to minority interests (94) (224) - -
Net prolit attributable to equity helders of
Meltroland Australia Eimited 539 1,612 4,991 2,070
Overall and Continuing Operations:
Ordinary Shares:
Basic enrnings per share 3 $0.005 50.01
Diluted earnings per share 5 $0.005 $0.01

The income statements are to be read in conjunction with the sccompanying notes,

13
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JIUNE 2009
Consolidated The Company
Nate 2009 2008 2009 2008
000 37000 $000 7000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis 8 1912 2,955 1,389 2466
Trade and other receivables g 3,809 3,680 6,449 1,629
Inventories 10 177 68 - -
Current tax assets 4(b) 144 - - .
Other current assets 12 302 Bb i3 23
Total Current Assets 6,347 6,789 7.851 4,118
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 9 3,605 401 17,939 15076
Iavestment property under
development 13 756 12,938 - -
Investment property 14 73,000 37,935 - -
Investments acceunted for using the
equity method il 1,627 6,780 - -
Financial assets 15 36 36 1,777 50
Property, plant & equipment 16 307 353 235 285
Deferred tax assets 4(d) 165 438 699 754
Total Non-Current Assets 79496 58,883 20,650 16,165
TOTAL ASSETS 85,843 63,672 28,501 20,283
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 17 4,821 3,586 274 423
Financial liabilities 18 26,255 1,408 3,740 1,325
Current tax liabilities 4(b) - 227 - -
Short-term provisions 20 141 124 37 15
Total Current Liabilities 31,217 5,345 4,051 1,763
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 17 - 705 - -
Financial liabitities 13 31,596 37,712 T4 400
Deferred tax liabilities 4re) 1,296 2,234 - 950
Long-term provisions 20 50 44 12 10
Total Non-Current Liabilities 32,942 40,695 712 1,360
TOTAL LIABILITIES 64,159 46,040 4,763 3,123
NET ASSETS 21,684 19,632 23,738 17,160
EQUITY
Contributed equity 21 14,966 13,379 14,966 13,379
Retained earnings 6,475 6,029 8,772 3,781
Minority equity inlerests 243 224 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 21,684 19,632 23,738 17,160

The balance sheets are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 30 JUNE 2009

Minority
Contributed Retained equity
equity earnings interests
000 5000 $re00
CONSOLIDATED

Balance at 1 July 2007 13,197 4,950

Shares issued pursuant to

dividend reinvestment plan 182 -
Profit attributable to members

of the pareut entity - 1.612
Profit auributable 10 minority

shareholders - - 774

Dividends paid or provided
for - (333)

Total equity
000

18,147

Balance at 30 June 2008 13,379 6,029 224

Adjustment 1o reserves (93)
Profit attributable to members

of parent entity - 539
Profit aitributable to minority
sharcholders -
Shares issued 1,587 -
Dividends paid or provided

for - - {75)

94
1,387

{73)

Balance at 30 June 2009 14,966 6,475 243

21,684

Contributed Retained
equity earnings
$r000 5000

THE COMPANY

Balance at 1 July 2007 13,197 2,244
Shares issued pursuant 1o dividend

reinvestment plan 182

Profit for the year - 2,070
Dividends paid or provided for « {533)

Total equity
$000

15,441

182
2,070
(333)

Balance at 30 June 2008 13,37¢ 3,781

Shares issued 1,587 -
Prafit for the year - 4,991
Dividends paid or provided for - -

17,160

1,587
4,991

Balance at 30 June 2009 14,966 8,772

13,738

The statements of changes in equity are ta be read in conjunction with the uccompanying notes.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts in the course of operations
Cash payments in the course of operations
Interest received

Borrowing costs paid

Dividends and distributions received
Income taxes (paid)/refunded

Net cash {used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTEVITIES

Purchase of property, plan: and equipment
Proceeds from sale of plant aad equipment
Proceeds from investment redemptions and
loan repayments

Purchase of investment

Acquisition of investment property
Payments for invesiment property under
development

Proceeds from/(payments 10) joint vensures
Loans (to)/repaymeats from other entities

Net cash {used in)/provided by investing

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Loans (to)/from related entities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issue of shares

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash held
Cash at beginning of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financial year

Consolidated The Company

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000
18,516 18,536 520 227
(15,983) (16,122) (985) (1.318)
134 184 101 170
(3,497) (2,985) (202) {221)
- 33 32 66
(293) (269) 41) {(212)
T{n) {1,123) {603} {575) (1,288)
(26) (313) (2} {294}
- 61 - -
- by, - 378
(1,766} - (1,718) -
- (542) - -
- {3,059) - -
- 1,689 - 1,964
1 - -
{1,792) (1,788) (1,720% 2,048
(874) 489 (1,765} 2,078
1,401 9,579 1,396 -
{364} {6,151} - {1,414)
(26} (354) - (354)
1,587 - 1,587 -
1,724 3,563 1,218 310
{1,191) 1,172 {1,077) 1.070
2,947 1,175 24606 1,396
T(b) 1,756 2,947 1,389 2,466

The statements of cash flows are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 81 009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTEt - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financiul report are:

Going Concern

At 30 June 2009 the group's current [iabilities exceeded its current assels by $25m, due to the inclusion in current financial liabilities
of the groups’ share of the development loan facility of $24m 1o finance the development and construction of the Greenway
Supacenta at Wetherill Park, This facility expires on 30 November 2009 and the financier has provided a Term Note facility of
$32.5m to refinance the development at its expiry. The refinance Term Note is for a peried of 5 years.

The refinance facility is subject to the maintaining of various conditions of the facility, including minimum interest cover and loan to
valuation {LVR) ratio. The directors are confident that there have heen no adverse events or facis that would prevent the refinancing
of the facility.

The ability of the group to continue, significantly unimpaired, ils operations and to pay its debis as and when they fall due is
dependent on the continued support by the finaneier and the refinancing of the development facility and the ability of the group to
generale positive cash flow from its operations.

Should the directors not achieve the matters set out above, ihiere js inherent uncertainty whether the consolidated entity will be able
ta continue as a going concern.

If part or the whole of the censclidated entity is not able to continue s » going concern, it may be required to realise assets and
extinguish liabilities other than in the normal course of business and at amounts different to those stated in the financial report,

The financial report does not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability or classification of recorded nsset amouals or Lo
the amounts or classification of liabilities, which might be necessary should the consolidated entity not be able to cantinue as a going
concern.

{a) Basis of Preparation
Reparting Basis and Conventions

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australisn Accounting Standards
Baard.

The finencial tepart covers the economic entity of Metroland Australia Limited and controlled entities, und Metroland Australia
Limited as an individual parent entity. Metroland Australia Limited is a listed public company, incorparated and domiciled in
Australia.

The financial report of Metroland Australia Limited and controHed entities, and Metroland Australia Limited as an individual
parent enfity comply with all Australian equivalents to Internstional Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) in their entirety.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable by the
measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial labilities.

The following is a summary of the material accounting puolicies adopted by the economic entity in the preparation of the finsncial
repart. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated

(b) Principles of Consolidation
Cuonirelled Entities

A controlled entity is any entity Metroland Australia Limited has the power 10 control the financial and operating policies of so as 10
obtain benefits from its activities.

The consolidated finoncial statements are those of the consolidated entity, comprising Mewroland Australia Limited (the parent
entity} and the entities which Metroland Australia Limited controlled from time to time during the year. A list of controlled entities
is contained in Note 24 to the financial statements.

Al intercompany balances and tragsactions, including unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions, have been eliminated
in full. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

As at reporting date, the assels and liabilities of all conrolled entities have been incorporated into the consalidated financial

statements as well as their results for the year then ended, Where controlled entities have entered or Jeft the economic entity during
the year, their operating results have been inciuded/excluded from the date control was obtained or until the date control ceased.
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METROLAND AUSTRALIA LYMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 81 009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

Minarity interests, being that portion of the profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries atiributable to equity interest held by persons
cutside the group, are shown separately within the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated income
statement.

Joint Ventures
A joint venture is either an operation or entity that is jointly controiled by the consolidated entity,

The economic entity’s share of the assets, linbilities, revenue and expenses of joint venture operations are included in the appropriate
items of the consolidated financial statements. Details of the consolidated entity’s interests are shown at Note 23,

The economic entity’s interests in joint ventures entities are brought to account using the equity method of accounting in the
censolidated financial statements. The parent entity's interests in joint venture entities are brought 1o aceount using the cost method,
Details of the consolidated entity’s interests are shown at Note 25,

Changes in Ownership Interese

Loss of control, joint contral or significant influence retained

When control ceases but significant influence or joint control is retained, the carrying amount ot the date of change in staius of the
investment is determined as if it had been an associatefjoint venture entity since the acquisition date, opening equity amounts are
restated and any remaining effect of the change in status is recognised as a revenue or expense.

{c) Taxation

The charge for cumment income 1ax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any non-nssessuble or disallowed items.
It is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or are substantally enacted by the halance sheet date.

Deferred (ax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability methed in respect of temporary differences arising between the 1ax
bases of assets und linbilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on accounting ar
taxable profit or foss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected 10 apply to the period when the asset is realised or liability is settled.
Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the exient that it is probable that future tax profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the fuwure is based on the assumption that no adverse
change will occer in income taxation lepgislation and the anticipation that the economic entity will derive sufficient future
assessable income to enable the benefir to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law,

Capital gains tax, if applicable, is provided for in establishing period income tax expense when an asset is sold.

Tax Consolidation

Metroland Australia Limited and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have [ormed an income tax consolidated group under the
tax censolidation regime. Each entity in the group recognises ils own current and deferred 1ax liabilities, except for any deferred tax
lubilities resulting from unused tax losses and tax credits, which are immediately assumed by the parent entity. The current tax
liability of each group entity is then subsequenily assumed hy the parent entity, The group notified the Australian Tax Office that it
had formed an income tax consalidated group to apply from 1 July 2002. The 1ax consolidated group has entered a tax sharing
agreement whereby each company in the group contributes to the incame tax payable in proportion to their contribution to the net
profit before tax of the tax cansolidated group.

(d) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily tzke a substantial period
of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added 1o the cost of those sssets, until such time ns the assels are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in income in the period in which they are incurred.
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METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 81 009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(e)

(n

(g

)

(M

®

Investment in Associales

Investments in assockate companies are recognised in the firancial statements by applying the equity method of accounting, The
equity method of accounting recognised the group's share of post-acquisition reserves of its associates,

Investment Property

Investment property, comprising freeheld shopping complexes, is held to generate long-term rental yields and for capital
appreciation. All tenant lesses are on an arms length basis. Investment properties are carried at fair value determined annually using
both independent and directors valuations. Changes to fair value are recorded in the income statement.

Inventories

Inveatories, and properties under development are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of
acquisition and for property under development alse includes development and helding costs such as borrowing costs, rates and
taxes until the point of time that the property is ready for sale or use. Borrowing costs and other holding costs incurred afier
completion of development are expensed. Profits are only brought to account upon the completion of the development project, when
the unconditiona) cantracts of sale is seftled, with the substantial risk and rewards being passed to the purchaser,

Construction Contracts and Work in Propgress
Construction work in progress is valued at cost, plus profit recogaised to date less any provision for anticipated future lesses. Cost
inciudes bath variable and fixed costs refating to specific contracts, and those costs that are attributable 1o the contract activity in

general and that can be allocated on a reasongble basis.

Construction profils are recognised on the stage of completion basis and measured using the proportion of costs incurred to date as
compared to expected actual costs. Where losses are anticipated they are provided for in full.

Construction revenue has been recognised on the basis of the terms of the contract adjusted for any variations or claims allowable
under the contract.

Plant and Equipment

Plaat and equipment are measured on the cost basis,
Alt assets have limited useful lives and are depreciated using the straight line or diminishing value method aver their estimated
useful lives taking into sccount estimated residual values. Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition. Depreciation rates
and methods are reviewed annually for appropriateness. When changes are made, adjustments are refected prospectively in current

and future periods only. Depreciation is expensed.

The depreciation rates used for each class of asset is as follows:

2009 2008
Leasehold Improvements 20% -
Plant and Equipment 17 - 40% 17 - 40%

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if applicable, ot each balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying
value is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount,

Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying values of its langible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indicate exists, the recoverable amount of those assets, being the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs to self and value in use, is compared 10 the asset's carrying value, Any excess of the assels

carrying value over its recaverable amouat is expensed to the income staterment,

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit 1o which the asset belongs.
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METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 81009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

6y

{1

{m)

(n)

{0)

(p)

(e}

Payables

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received. Trade accounts payable are normally
settled within 90 days.

Interest Bearing Liabilities

Bank loans are recognised ut their principal nmount, subject to set-off arrangements, Interest expense is accrued at the contracted rate
and is included in “Other creditors and accruals”.

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with benks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original malurities of 12 months or less, and bank overdrafis. Bank overdrafts are shown within shori-term borrawings in current
liabilities on the balance sheet,

Loans and Receivables

Louans and receivables are nan-derivative financial assels with fixed er determinzble puyments that are not quoted in an active market
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Financizl Liabilities
Non-dertvative financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methad.
Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognised al fair value of the consideration received net of the amount of poods and services tax {GST) payable 10 the
iaxation anthority,

Sale of Property

Revenue from the sale of property is only recognised upen the campletion of the project, when the unconditional contracts of sale is
settled, and the substantial risks and rewards is passed to the purchaser of the property. :

Rendering of Services

Revenue from the rendering of property management and facilitation services is recognised when the service is rendered and the
revenue is receivable.

Investment Property Rental Revenue

Reatal revenue comprises rent received from entities outside the consolidated entity. Rental income is accounted for on a straight
line basis over the term of the leases.

Construction Activities

Revenue recognition in relation to construction activities is detailed in Note 1(h).

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it acerues, taking into account the effective yield on the financial asset.

Dividend

Dividend tevenue is recognised net of any franking credits. Revenue from dividends from controlled entities is recognised by the
parent entity when they are declared by the controled entities. Revenue fram dividends and distributions from joint venture entities

is recognised when they are declared by the joint venture entities.

Goods & Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST,
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ABN B1 009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE I - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(r)

{s)

m

{u)

v}

(w)

(x)

Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, excepl for the GST component of investing and financing
activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS") is caleulated by dividing the net profit attributable to members of the parent entity for the
reporting period, after excluding any costs of servicing equity, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company,
adjusied for any bonus issue.

Dilated EPS is coleulated by dividing the basic EPS earnings, adjusted by the after tax effect of financing costs associated with
dilutive polential ordinary shares and the effect on revenues and expenses of conversian to ordinary shares associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilufive ordinary shares adjusted for any bonus
issue.

Employec Benefits

Pravision is made for the company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance date.
Empioyee benefits that are expected to be seitled within 12 months year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the linbility is setiled, plus related on-costs, Employee benefits payable later than 12 months have been measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits wil result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

Dividends

A provision for dividends payable is recognised in the reporting period in which the dividends are declared, for the entire
undistributed umount, regardless to the extent to which they will be paid in cash,

Receivables
The collectibility of debts is assessed at reporting date and specific provision is made for any impairment.

Trade Debtors
Trade debtors to be settled within 90 days are carried at amounts due.

Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform 1o changes in presentation for the
current financial year.

Use and Revision of Accounting Estimates

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report based on historical knowledge and best
available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future evenis and are based on current trends and
economic data, obiained both externally and within the Group.

Key Estimates

{i) Fair valuation of investment properties

The directors assess the valuation of the investnent properties based on valuations obtained annually by independent valuers. These
valuations are based on expected rental yields and outgoings based on curreat and historical evidence as well as current market

expectations.
Rounding of amounts
The parent entity has applied the relief available to it under ASIC Class Order $8/100 and accorclingly, amounts in the financial

report and directers’ report have been rounded off 10 the nearest §000.

The financial report was authorised for issue on 30 September 2009 by the bourd of direciors,

21



METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 81009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE 2 REVENUE

Revenue from sale of:
- Construction services
- Other

Rental revenue from investment properties

Property management and facilitation revenue

Other revenues:-

From operating activities
Interest — other parties
—related parties
Dividends — other parties
— partly owned subsidiary
Profit on disposal of investment
Trust distribution - joint venture entities

Total Other Revenues

Total Revenue

NOTE 3 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

() Individually significant expense/(revenue) included in
profit before income tax:

Impairment of loans to controlled entities

Trust distribution from joint veature entities

Net (gain)/loss from changes in the fair value of
investment properties

Interest income on loans to wholly-owned subsidiaries

{b) Profit before income tax has been arrived st after
charging/(crediting) the following items:

Borrowing Costs:
-Other pasties
Less: Capitalised barrowing costs

Consolidated The Cempany
2009 2008 2008 2008
$°000 $000 $7000 %000
7,446 16,785 1,500 1,500
100 326 - -
7.546 17,111 1,500 1,500
3,971 3,801 - -
1,814 1,165 487 136
5,785 4,766 487 136
134 184 m 162
- - 1,083 1,082
- 33 - 33
" - 3,272 77
- . 42 -
- - - 2,980
134 217 4,498 4,334
13,465 22,094 6,485 5,970
. - 935 1,243
(114) (2,980) (114) (2,980)
(360) 422 . .
- - {1,083) (1,083)
3,517 2,985 202 212
{1,082) (664) - -
2,435 2,321 202 212

Borrowing costs were capitalised to property inventories and qualifyiag assets at a weighted average annual rate of 5.97% (2008:9.09%).
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METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 81009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Note Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2048
$1000 006 $7000 $’000
NOTE 3 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (cont’d)
Amortisation and depreciation of:
Plant and equipment 71 535 54 26
Net expense from movements in provisions for;
- Employee entitlements expense 23 73 24 (2)
- Impairment 56 25 955 1,242
Investment loan written-off 28 132 - 120
Operating lease payments 40 49 49 49
NOTE 4 TAXATION
(a) Income Tax Expense
Prima facie tax payable on profit before income tax at
30% (2008~ 30%) (34 822 1,288 880
Increase/(decrease) in income tax expense due {o:
- Division 43 czpital allowance {41) - - -
- Dividends received not taxable - - (982) -
- Deferred Tax Linbiliry transferred - - {050} -
- Capitalised interest {440
- Recovery on project completion {201) - - -
- Other 29 5 (55) (19)
Qver provision of income tax in the prior year - (82) - -
Recoupment of prior year tax losses of partly owned
subsidiary not previously brought o account - (63) - -
Tax losses of partially owned subsidiaries not
recognised in the accounts - 221 - -
Income 1ax expense attributable to operating profit (745) 903 {699} 861
Incomne tax expense comprises:
- current tax 83 111 1456 336
- deferred tax {627) 716 (950) 325
~ Tecovery on project completion (201) - - -
- overprovision in respect of prior year - (82) - -
-recoupment of prier year tax losses not previously
brought to sccount - (63) - -
-tax Fosses not recogaised - 221 - -
(745) 903 (699) 861
(b) Current Tax (Asset)/Liabilities
Refund due on project completion (172) - - -
Provision for Current Income Tax 28 227 - -
{144} 227 - -




METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 81 009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE 4- TAXATION (Cont’d}

(c)

()

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

Provision for Deferred income Tax

Provision for deferred income tfax comprises the
estimated expense at the appiicable rate of 30% (2008:
30%j) on the following items:

Fair value gain adjustments

Tax altowances relating to properties

Income not currently assessable for tax

Expenditure curreatly deductible for tax but deferred for
accountng purpeses

Losses applied

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of the
following items:

Deductible temporary diffecences
Tax losses carried forward

Income tax losses:

The deductible temporary differences and tax losses do not
expire under current 1ax legislation, Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the consolidated entity can utilise the benefits from the
deferred tox assets,

NOTE 5 -~ EARNINGS PER SHARE

Eamings reconciliation
Basic earnings

Diluted earnings

Weighted average munber of shares used as the denaminator

Number for basic earnings per share:
Ordinary Shares

Number for diluted ezrnings per share:
Qrdinary shares

24

Consolidated The Company
2431609 2008 2009 2008
5000 $2000 $1000 $1000

{217) 465 - -
668 325 - -

1,067 950 - 0930
838 494 - .

(316)

1,296 2,234 - 950
165 438 699 754
165 79 699 395

- 359 - 359
165 438 649 754
450 365 - -

Consolidated

2004 2008

5000 $000
539 1612
539 1,807
Number Number
114,067 475 107,537,820
114,067,475 123,282,594




METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

AEN 81 009 [38 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE 6 -~ AUDITORS REMUNERATION
Auditars of the Company:

Audit services

Audit and review of financial reports

Other services
Taxation compliance services
Share registry services

NOTE 7 - NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Operating profit after income tax
Add/(less) items classified as investing/financing activities:
Interest paid capitalised in loans and property
Fair value adjustment to investment property
Non-cash items
Interest income capitalised
Investment loan written-off
Depreciation
Laoss on disposal of fixed assets
Gain on sale of investment
Amounts set aside 1o provisions
Equity accounted share of joint venture
entities® resalts
Changes in assets and liabilities:
{Increase)/decrease in property inventorics
{Increase)/decrease in receivables
Increase/{decrense) in payables
Increase/{decrease) in 1ax balances
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments

Net cash provided by / {used in) operating activities

{bY Reconciliation of Cash
Cash
Short term deposits
Bank overdraft

NOTE 8 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT ASSETS
Cuerrent

Cash at bank and in hand

Bank short term deposits

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 3.90% (2008:7.06%).

Consolidated TFhe Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ 8 §
93.678 79,380 93,678 79,380
5,138 6,152 5,138 6,152
13.643 13,724 13,643 13,724
18,781 19,876 18,781 19,876
112,459 99,256 112,459 99,258
$'000 $'000 $1000 $ 000
633 1,836 4,991 2,070
{1,082) (664) - -
360 422 - -
- - (1,083) (1.075)
98 132 955 120
70 33 53 26
2 26 1 3
" - (42} -
33 98 24 1,229
(72} {2,980) - -
(109) (66) . .
207 (3,838) (4,733) (4,449)
(1,298} 2,594 {12) 163
(125) 634 {739 648
160 148 10 (23)
(1,123) (603} {575} (1,288}
700 192 176 20
1,213 2,763 1,213 2,446
{157) (8) - -
1,756 2,947 1,389 2,466
700 192 176 20
1,212 2,763 1,213 2446
1,912 2,955 1,389 2466
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2002 2008
5000 000 $100 £080
NOTE 9 - TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Currens
Trade receivables 245 122 - -
Less: Impairment of receivables (85) (409 - -
160 82 -

Amount due from customers for construction
cantracts S(u) 1,425 2,529 - -
Dividends receivable - purtly owned subsidiary - - 3,444 44
Rent receivable 289 41 - -
Project management fee receivable — joint venture 1,500 750 3,000 1,500
GST receivable 77 - 3 13
Other receivables 358 266 2 60
Loan to other entity - 12 - 12

3,809 3,680 6,449 1,629
Non-Current
Loans to controlled entities - - 12,979 8,801
Less: Provision for impairment - - (2,198) (1,243)

- - 10,781 7,558

Loans to joint venture entities 3,555 394 7,109 4,079
Distributions receivable — related joint venture entity - - - 3432
Other receivables 50 7 S0 7

3,605 401 17,540 15,076

The weighted averape effective interest rale on loans to controlled entities is 9% (2008: 95). All loans are repayable at call. The loans are
not repayable within the next twelve months.

()  Conséruction Contracts

Contracted costs incurred 12,098 14,270
Recognised (loss)/profit {77 1,763
12,021 16,035
Progress billings (12,021) {16,035
Amounts due from custemers for contract wark 1,425 2,529
Retenticns on construction contracts in progress 640 771
Progress billings received and receivahle on
construction contracts in progress 11,381 15,264

NOTE 10 -~ INVENTORIES

Current

Finished goods held for resale, at lower of cost and net

realisable value 177 46 - -
Development properties, at Jower of cost and net

realisable value - 22 - -

177 68 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$1000 5000 $000 000

NOTE 11 - INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
Non-current
Joint venture entities 25 1,627 6,780 -

The investment which was accounted for under equity accoumting in the prior year has now been accaunted for 85 a Joint Venture,

NOTE 12 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Current
Prepayments 302 86 13

NOTE 13 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Non-Current

Cost of acquisition 746 7.749 - -
Development costs capitalised 5 3,470 - -
Interest capitalised 5 1,719 - -

756 12,938 - -

Borrowing costs were capitalised at & weighted average rate of 5.97% (2008: 9.09%)

Properties held for development at 30 June 2008 comprised the cansolidated entity’s share of the property at 11-15 Elizabeth Street,

Wetherill Park and adjoining land at 1187 The Horsely Drive, Wetherill Park forming the Greenway Supacenta Development, undertaken

in joint-venture with Gaintak Investments Piy Limited. The development has been completed and the asset has been transferred to
investment property.

NOTE 14 — INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Non-Current

Balance at beginning of the year 37,235 37,763 - .
Transfer from equity accouated investment (i) 12,200 - - -
Transfer from Properties Held for Development 23,820 - - -
Expenditures capitalised 205 594 - -
Fair value adjustment 360 (422) - -

73,000 37,935 - -

Investmen: properties comprise:

*  The Campbelltown Square shopping complex at 218-240 Queens Street, Cumpbelltown which was acquired in May 2007.

*  The Wenthworthville Matl, a shopping complex at 42-44 Dunmore Street, Wentworthville, purchased in September 2004,

=  Greenway Supaceata, a shopping complex at Wetheritt Park, Development werk on the complex was completed in Marchk 2009,
*  Greenway Plaza shopping complex at Wetherill Park.

The fair value mode! is applied to all investment properties. Investment propesties are independently valued at least annually. The
investment properties listed above have all been valued based on independent valuations excepl for the Greenway Supacenta property
which has been valued by the directors based on a discounted independent valuation. The independent valuaticas at 30 June 2009 were
assessed using the capitalisation of potentisl rental method, based on an active liquid market and were performed by a registered

independent valuer.

(i) The asset wansferred above relates o the groups™ share of the Greenway Plaza investment property. This asset is held by Gaintak
Investments Pty Ltd which was accounted for under equity accounting in the prior year but is now being treated as a joint venture and

therefore the asset is shown within the groups® investment properties.
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ABN B1 009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 200%

NOTE 15 - FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-Clerrent
Investments in contrelled entities
Unlisted shares at cost

Investmenty in other entitfes
Joint venture entity

Investments in Associates
Unlisted shares at cast
Unlisted units at cost
Provision for diminution

NOTE 16 — PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment — at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Movements in Carrving Amounts

Mavemenis in the carrying smount for each class of praperty, plant and equipment are set out below:-

Plant and equipntent

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Carrying amount at end of year

NOTE 17 - TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Current

Trade creditors

Other creditors and accruals

GST payable

Nomn-current
Owing to related entities

NOTE 18 — FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current

Bank overdraft

Bank loans —secured

Leans from other entities-unsecured

Hire purchase liabilities - secured

Non-current

Bank loans-secured

Loan from other entities-unsecured
Hire purchase lizbilifies - secured

18(a)
18{ly
18(c)

18(a)
18(t)
18(c)

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 B
S000 7000 1000 $1000

- - 1,740 3
36 36 36 36
101 101 101 111
- - 1 1
{101) (101) (141} (101)
. - 1 11
36 36 1,777 50
446 423 321 317
(139 (68) (86) (32)
307 355 235 285
355 181 285 0
23 324 4 204
- &5 - (3)
{71} {33) (54) (26)
307 355 235 285
913 2,352 - -
3,908 1,211 274 423
- 23 . -
4,821 3,586 274 423
- 705 . -
157 8 - -
23,966 64 - -
2121 1,325 3,740 1,325
i1 11 - -
26,255 1.408 3,740 1,325
27,692 37,285 - -
3,888 400 700 400
16 27 - -
31,5596 37,712 700 500




METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN B1 009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE 18 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Cont’d)}

{a) The bank loans are secured by registered first martgages over properties of the controlled entities. The covenants for the bank loans
require minimum interest cover ratios of between 1 to 1.25 times an the net passing rental of the morigaged property and loan to
valuation ratios (LVRs) of between 70% to B5% of the fair valuation of mortgaged investment property, The non-current portion of the
bank loans of $427,000 is due for repayment by November 2013; 514,140,000 is repayable by May 2012; §13,125,000 is repayable by
1 November 2010.

Included in current financial liabitities is the group’s share of the development facility of $23,928,000 which was provided as finance
for the Greenway Supacenta development, This facility expires in November 2009 and the financier has provided a Term Note facility
10 refinance the development facility at its expiry. The refinance facility Term Note is for a peried of 5 years. The refinance facility is
subject to the parties acceptance of various conditions of the facility, including minimum interest cover and LVR rutio. The original
facility is currently under an annual review however the bank has not called for a valuation of the secured propesty.

The weighted average interest rate an these loans at 30 June 2009 is 6.28% {2008: 7.98%).

{b) Loans from other entities are unsecured. The current portion is repayable at call, and the non-current portion is not due within the
next 12 months. The weighted average interest rate on these loans at 30 June 2009 is 3.98% (2008: 9.77%).

{c) Hire purchase liabilities are secured over the assets being financed. The non-current portion of $16,000 is due for repayment
progressively until 2011, The weighted average interest rate of hire purchase liabilities at 3¢ June 2009 was 8.36% (2008:8.36%).

The carrying amount of the pledged properties at the reporting date are as follows:

Censolidnted The Company
2069 2008 2009 2008
$1000 $7000 $'060 $7000

Properties held for development 756 12,939 - -
Investment praperties 73,000 37,935 - -
Fixed assets 26 43 - “

69,217 50,917 - -
NOTE 19 - FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
The consolidated entity has access to the following lines of credit:
Torl facilities available:
Bank loans 51,658 44,171 - -
Other entity loans 6,035 1,763 2821 1,725

57,693 45,934 - 1,725
Facilities whilised at balance dare:
Bank loans 51,658 37,349 - -
QOther entity loans 6,035 1,763 2,821 1,725

57,693 39,112 “ 1,725
Facilities not wilised ar balance dare;
Banrk loans - 6,822 - -
Other entity loans - - - -

- 6,822 - -

The major finance facilities are for the acquisition of the Group's investment properties and for the construction of the Graup's joint
venture Greenway Supacenta development., The facility available at year end represents the balance remaining of the Group's share
of the construction loan facility. Finance is expected to continue to be available provided the Company and the Group have not
breached any borrowing requirements and the required financial ratios are met.

NOTE 20 - SHORT-TERM AND LONG-

TERM PROVISIONS

Current

Employee benefits 141 124 37 15
Non-current

Employee benefits 50 44 12 10
Number of employees at year end 13 16 6 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Reconciliations
Recanciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of
provision, except for employee benefits, is set out below:

Dividends

Carrying amount at beginning of year - - - -
Provisions made during the year;

- Final dividend 2008 - 532 - 532
Payments made during the year - {532) - (532)

Carrying amount at year end - - - -

Note Consolidated The Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

$1000 £'000 000 $£7000
NOTE 21 - CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
{a) Share capital
124,783,244 (2008: 108,031,973) ordinary
shares fully paid 14,966 13,379 14,966 13,379
Movements during the year;
Balance at beginning of year: 108,031,973
shares (2008: 106,779,433 shares) 13,379 13,197 13379 13,197
Shares issued;
- 1,751,271 (2008: 1,252,540) Pursuant 1o the
company dividend reinvestiment plan 87 182 87 182
- 15,000,000 (2008: Nil) for cash pursuant to a
share placement 1,500 - 1,500 -
Balance at end of the year: 124,783,244 shares
{2008: 108,031,973 shares) 14,966 13,379 14,966 13,379

On 23 December 2008 1,751,271 shares were issued at $0.05 per share
On 18 February 2009 15,000,000 shares were issued at $0.10 per share

Terms and Conditions
Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from lime to time and are entitled to one vote per share at

shareholders’ meetings,

in the event of winding up of the company, ordinary shareholders rank afier creditors and are fully entitled to any praceeds of
liquidation.

(b} Oprions

During the year 17,744,774 share options expired, These options were exercisable by option holders at any time prior to the expiry
date of 29 May 2009, at an exercise price of $0.26. During or since the end of the financial year, the company did not issue any
ordinary shares by virtue of the exercise of any option,

For information relaling to share options issued to and held by directors and by key management persoanel during and at the end of
the financial year, refer to Note 29,

(c) Capital Management
Management's contrel over the capital of the group is to procure a level of capital in order to maintzin a good debt to equity ratio;
provide the shareholders with adeguate returns and to ensure that the group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.

The group’s debt and capital includes ordinary share capital and financial liabilities, supported by financial assets. There are no
externally imposed capital requirements.

In managing the group's capital, management assess the group's {inancial risks to determine the requirement of adjusting its capital
structure in response to changes in these risks and in the market. The group’s attemnpts to raise additional capital i the current market
is not readily availzble, and management is canscious of the need to closely monitor and manage the group’s debt levels, and
distributions to shareholders.

There have been no changes in the strategy adopied by management to control the capital of the group since the prior year. This
sirafegy is 1o ensure that the group's gearing ratio remains below the minimum foan covenanted Loan to Valuation ratio of 70%. The
gearing ratio for the year ended 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2008 are as follows:-
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Total borrowings 17,18 62,672 43,411 4,714 2,148
Less: cash and cash equivalents 8 {1,912) {2,955) (1,389) {2,466)
Net Debt 60,760 40,456 3325 (318)
Total Equity 21,684 19,632 23,581 17.160
Total Capital 82,444 60,088 26,901 16,842
Geuring Ratio 2% 67% 12% -
Naote Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 200 2008
$000 $000 $'000 $o00d

NOTE 22 - DIVIDENDS
No dividends were declared in the current year by the company,
Dividend Franking Account

30% franking credits available to shareholders of Metroland Australia
Limited for subsequent financial years 1,373 1,332

The above available credit amounts nre based an the balance of the dividend franking account at year-end adjusted for:

{a)  franking credits that wilk arise from the payment of the current iax liability;

(b) [ranking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at year-end;

()  franking credits thal will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables by the tax-consolidated entity at year-end;
(d)  franking credits thut the entity may be prevented by from distributing in subsequent years,

The nbility to wilise the franking credits is dependent upon there being sufficient available profits to declare dividends.

NOTE 23 -~ INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE OPERATION

The consalidated entity holds a 50% interest in the Greenway Supacenta Joint Venture whose principle activity is the development of the
butky goods supacenta at Elizabeth Street, Wetherill Park and also helds a 50% interest in Gaintak Investments Pty Limited, For the year
ended 30 June 2009 the contribution of the joint ventures to the operating result before tzx of the campany and consolidated entity was a
profit of $2,223,000 {2008: a loss of $6,582,000).

Included in the assets and liabilities of the consolidated entity are the following items which represent the company’s and consotidated
entity’s interests in the assets and liabilities employed in the joint venture, recorded in accordance with the accounting policies described
in Note 1(b).

Current Assets

Cash 90 - - -
Property held for development - 12,402 - -
Receivables 365 262 - -
Taotal Current Assals 455 12,664 - -

Non Current Assets

Investment Property 39,674 -

Total Assets 44,129 12,664 - -
Current Liabilities

Bank overdraft . ] . -

Trade and other creditors 5,753 2,033 - -
Total Current Liabilities 5,753 2,041 - -
Non-Current Lishilities

Interest bearing liabilities 28,674 5,085 - -

Onther creditors - 478 - -
Tatal Non-Current Liabilities 28,674 5,763 - -
Total Liabilities 34,427 7,804 - -
Net Assels 5,702 4,860 - -

Refer Note 27 for details of contingent liabilities,
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NOTE 24 - CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(a) Particulars in relation 1o contralled entities

ORDINARY SHARE

PECENTAGE OWNED
NAME

2009 20408
Puarent entiry % %
Metroland Australia Limijted
Controtied entities
Metroland Properties Pty Limited 100 100
Kings Propertics {Australia) Pty Limited 100 100
Greenway Australia Properties Pty Limited 50 100
Metroland Homes Pty Limited 180 100
Stratawide Munagement Pty Limited 55 35
Goldwest Metro Pty Limited 100 100
MetroBuild Associntes Pty Limited (formerly
Metro Associates Pty Lid) 100 05
Metro Facilities Management Pty Limited 104 100
MetroC Pty Limited (formerly Home as Metro
Pty Lid) 100 100
Altitute Design & Construction Pty Limited 100 100
Campbelltown Metro Pty Limited 100 100
Metroland Coenstruetions Pty Limited 6t 60
Global Real Estate Assets Corporation Pry
Limited 100 100
DK Engineering Pty Limited 108 100
Gaintak Investments Pty Limited (previously
held as an equity investment} 50 50
Metro Developments Fund Pty Limited 100 -
Metroland Management Services Limited 160 -
Meiraland Funds Management 100 -
Metroland Investments Limited (previously
held as en equity investment) 160 50

All controlled entities are incarporated and carry on business in Australia.
(I} Aequisition of controlled entities

New wholly owned subsidiaries, Metro Developments Fund Pty Limited, Metroland Management Services Limited and Mewroland Funds
Muanagement were set up to further provide property and building related services nnd products to the industries.

(c) Disposal of controlled entities

No controlied entities were disposed of during the current year or previous financial year.
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NOTE 25-INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Consolidated The Company
2008 2008 2009 2008
$'000 8000 $'000 5000

Share of nel profit accounted for using the equity

method included in the income statement;

- Joint venture entities 114 2,980 - -
Interest in Associates and Joint Venture Entities

Details of interests in joint venture entities are as follows:

Joint
Venture
Principal Reporting Ordinary Investment
Name Activities Date Ownership Amount
Consolidated Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 2008
% %o 57000 $1000 5000 $'000
Metroland Investments Investment in property
Pty Limited development emtity 30 June - 50 - - - 10
Meiro Plaza Chinatown Investment in property 30 June
v development eatity 25 - 1,668 - - -
Gaintak Investments Pty  Property investment and
Limited ATF Gaintak development
Investment Unit Trust 30 June 56 50 - 6,780 1 1
1,668 6,780 1 11

Gaintak Investments Pty Limited has been accounted for as a joint veniure entity commencing § Jamsary 2009 and Metroland [nvestments

Limited became a whotly owned subsidiary on 26 May 2009,

Results of joint venfure {to 31 December 2008)

Revenue from ordinary activities
Expenses from ordinary activities

Profit from ordirary activities before income tax

Nel gain from changes in fair value of investment property
Income tax expenses relating to ordingry activities
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Consolidated
2009 2008
$7000 5000
114 1,100
- (786}
114 314
- 2,666
114 2,980
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NOTE 25-INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD {Cont'd)

Balance Sheet

The consolidated entity's share of the joint venture entities assets and ligbilities consists of:-

Current assets
Non-current assets

Total assets

Current linbilities
Nan-current Habilities

Total {isbilities
Net assets — accounted for using the equity method

Refer to notes 26 and 27 for details of commitments and contingencies

Share af post-acquisition profit atiributable fo joint venture entities equity uccounted

Share of joint venture entities’ retained profit at beginning of year
Share of joint venture entities' net profit

Adjustment due to change in accounting treatment to that of z Joint
Venture entity

Share of joint venture entities’ retatned profit at end of year

Mavements in carrying amount of assoctates and joint venture entities

Carying amount a beginning of year

Cash contributions to asseciate during the year

Share of joint venture entities’ net profit

Transfer of assets & liabilities to those of consolidated entity
Repayment of contributions by the joint venture entity

Carrying amount at end of year
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Consolidated
2009 2008
$°000 000

- 521
1,668 24,211
- 24,732
- (232)
- (17,720)
- (17,952)
1,668 6,780
3,696 716
114 2,980
(3,810} -
- 3.696
6,780 5,489
1,668 -
114 2,980
(6,894} -
- (1,689)
1,668 6,780
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NOTE 26-CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

Capital Expenditure Commitments

Conirolled entities have entered into capital
expenditure contracts for the purchase of property.
The balance of the capitat expenditure commitments,
which is under a put and eall option, ouistanding at
30 hane 2009, payable not later than 12 months;

Operating Lease Commitments
Non-cancellable operating lease contracted for but
not copitalised in the financial statements:-
Fayable — minimum lease payments
- not later than 12 months
- between 12 months and 5 years

The preperty lease is a non-cancellable lease with ¢ §
year term, with rent payable moathly in advance., An
aption exists to renew the lease at the end of the 5
year term for an additional 3 years. The lease is
subject 10 1 CPLrental review at the end of the initick
5 year term.

Finance Lease Conpnitments
Payable — minimum lease payments
- not later than 12 months
- between 12 months and 3 years

Less: future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

Total Commitments

NOTE 27-CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Estimates of the potential financial effects of
coniingent liabilities that may became payable:-

Share of Associates® Contingent Liabilities
- Guarantee of associates loan facilities

Share of Joint Venture Comtingent Liabilities

A conirolled entity as o venturer in the Greenway
Supacenta loint Venture operation, is jointly and
severally liable for 100% of all liabilities incurred by
the joint venture. The assets of the joint venture are
sufficient to meel such liabilities, The joint venture
liabilities not already reflected in the stolement of
financial position are:

Consolidated The Company
2009 200% 2009 08
37000 3000 000 3000
2,000 6,906 - -
146 146 146 l14&
365 219 73 219
511 363 219 365
13 13 - -
20 34 - -
33 47 - -
{6) {9 - -
27 38 - -
2,538 7.309 219 363

Consolidated

The Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

51000 $1000 $7000 $:000
47,857 33,401 47857 33,401
18,259 7,804 - -
66,386 41,205 47,857 33,401
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NOTE 28- SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segmemt a5 well a5 those that can be allocated on a reasenable
basis. Unallocaled items mainly comprise corporate assets and expenses,

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurrad during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected ta be used for mare
than one period.

Business Segmenis

The consolidated entity comprises the following main business segments, based on the consolidated entity’s management reporting
systent-

Property construction, development and sale:  For property constriction and refurbishment contracts for external and other related
entities, and investment property urder development.

Property renials and management: Investment praperties held for the generation of rental income and cepital appreciation; and
residential property management and facilities manapgement services.

Investment and finencial services: Investments in joint venture entities; cash investments and general loan borrowings.
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METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN B1 009 138 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE 29-KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
Remuneration of specified directors and specified executives by the consolidated entity

Remuneration levels are set to astract and retain apprepriately qualified and experienced directors and senfor execurives. Remuneration
packages only include fixed remuneration. There are currently no performance-based or equity-based remuneration for directors and
executives,

The remuneration structures are designed to attract suitably qualified candidates, and to achieve the broader outcome of increasing the
consolidated entity’s net profit attributable to members of the parent entity. The remuneration structures took inte sccount:-

= the overall level of remuneration for each director and executive; and

*  the executives’ ability to control performance.

Fees for non-executive directors during the year were between $12,000 and 850,000 per annum. Directors fees cover all main beard
activities and the membership of other committees, where applicable, The company does not have any Retirement or Redundancy
Schemes in operation for directors and senior executives.

The following table provides the details of all directors of the company and key management persannel of the consolidated entity in office
at any time during the financial year with the greatest authority, and the nature and amount of the elements of their remuneration for the
year ended 30 June 2009:-

Primary salary & fees Termination benefits Post-employment

superannuation & benefils

2009 2008 2000 2008 2009 2008
§ & 3 $ 8 $

Specified directors
Non-executive
Steam Leung 24,044 24,000 - - -
Eddie Lee 12,008 12,000 - - - -
John Wardman 12,000 10,920 - - - 1,080
Da Cheng Zhang - - - - - -
Ray Kellerman — resigned 23
April 2008 - 51,667 - - -
Executive
Frank Shien 119,409 123,147 “ - -
Andrew Tooch — resigned 16
May 2008 - 124,807 - 110,000 - 9,703
Total, all specified directors 167,409 346,541 - 110,000 - 10,783
Specified execufives
Anthony Maroon, CEQ,
Stratawide Management Pty
Lid 154,567 140,000 - - 12,600 12,600

Tjing Hong Ong, CEQ,
Metroland Constructions Pty
Lid 130,000 130,000 - - 11,700 10,050
Lincoln Waong, CEQ, Home at
Metro Pty Lid (resigned 30
April 2008) - 178,333 - - - 8,019
George Daoud, Construction
Manager, Metroland
Constructions Pty Lid - 129,136 - - - 11,264
Paul Wang, Investment

Manager, Metroland Australia -
Ltd - 113,333 - B 9,961
David Feldman, CFO,
Metroland Australin Ltd

{resipned May 2008) 80,769 - 90,000

5,829

284,567 771,571 - 90,000 24,300 37,723
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NOTE 29-KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DIiSCILOSURES (cont’d)

Equity Instruments

Equity holdings and fransactions

The movement during the reporting period in the number of ardinary shares of Metroland Australia Limited held, directly,
indirectly or beneficially, by each specified director and specified executive, including their personally related entities is as

follows:-
Held at & Purchases Sales Held at 30
July 2008 June 2009
Specified directors
Frank Shien 12,619,610 491,087 - 13,110,697
Steam Leung 1,960,547 - - 1,960,547
Eddie Lee 327,500 - - 527,500
John Wardman 1,436,633 - - 1,436,033
Da Cheng Zhang 9,600,000 - - 9,600,000
Specified executives
Tjing Hong Ong 1,303,417 - - 1,303,417
David Feldman — resigned May 2008 192,903 - - 192,903
27,640,010 491,087 - 28,131,007

Options and Rights Over Equity Instruments

The movements during the reporting period in the number of uptions over ordinary shares af Metroland Australia Limited, held directly,
indirectly, or beneficially, by each director and specified executive, including their personally-related entities, granted on the same terms 1o

all existing shareholders of Metroland Australia Limited, is as folbows:-

Held at 1 July Granted Expired Held at 30 June
2008 2008

Directars

Frank Shien 1,665,912 - (1,665,912} -
Steam Leung 150,831 - (150,831) -
Eddie Lee 87,9146 - (87.917) -
Johnn Wardman 218,388 - (218,388) -
Da Chenp Zhang 1,600,000 - {1,600,000) -
Specified Executives

Tjing Hong Ong 189,998 - (189,998) -

3,913,045 (3,913,0435)

All options were allotted on 22 October 2004 and expired on 28 May 2009, The options were granted for no consideration.

Leans and other Transactions with Specified Directors and Specified Executives

Other transactions with the carnpany or its controlled entities

A number of specified directors and executives, or their personally-related entities, hold positions in other entities that result
having control or significant influence over the financial or reporting policies of those entities.

in them

A number of these entities transacted with the company or its subsidiaries in the reporting period. The terms and conditions of those
transactions were no more favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available in similar transactions to

unrelated entities on an arm’s length basis,

The aggregate amounts recopnised during the year relating to specified directors, specified executives and their personally-related entities,
were total revenue of $Nil (2008: $2,172,560) and total expenses of $148,716 (2008: $113,029). Details of the transactions are as follows:

39



METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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NOTE 29-EEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (cont’d)

Loans and other Transactions with Specified Directors and Specified Executives

2009 2008
Transaction Note $ §
Specified directors
Frank Shien Office rental and administration (i 148,716 100,509
Property management {iiy - 12,520

{2,172,560)

Sales revenue (3ii} -
148,716 {2,059,531)

(i}  The consalidated entity paid office rental to Tanesia Holdings Pty Ltd and NX Holdings Piy Limited, and administration service fees
to Premier Realty Pty Ltd for office suppor services provided, Frank Shien is a director of Tanesis Holdings Pty Limited and NX
Haldings Pty Limited; and Premier Realzy Piy Lid is controlled by & personally-related entity of Frank Shien,

(il)  During the 2008 year, Premier Realty Pty Lid provided praperty management services, al normal market rates, for ceriain properties
owned by the consolidated entity.

(iii) A contrelled entity was contracted 1o construct property owned by NX Holdings Pty Ltd in the 2008 year. Frank Shien is a director
of NX Holdings Pty Lid. The construction contract is on & cast plus 10% margin basis. The constructions was completed in January 2008,

Assets and liabilities ensuing from the above transactions:

30 June 2009 38 June 2008
$ §
Current Assets:
Trade debtors 210,160
Retentions receivable - 61,840

NOTE 30-NON-DIRECTOR RELATED PARTIES

(a) Wholly-owned, parily-owned and joint venture entities
Details of dealings with these non-director related parties are set out below;

Loans
Loans between wholly-awned and partly-owned entities, is charged interest at 9% on the balance cutstanding, are unsecured,

and are not repayable within the next twelve months.

Balances with non-director related entities
The aggregate amount receivable from nan-director related entities by the company at reporting date:
The Company

2009 2008
3000 $'000
Receivables
Current
Partly owned coatrolled entities 3,444 44
Jaint venture entities 3,000 1,500
6,444 1,544
Non-current
Wholly- owned controlled entities 11,426 7,143
Joint venture entities 7,109 7,511
18,535 15,254
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NOTE 30-NON-DIRECTOR RELATED PARTIES (Cont’d)

The aggregate amounts included in the profit fromt ordinary activities before income iax
expense that resulted from transactions with non-director related parties are:

Inierest revenue

Wholly — owned controlled eatilies i,083 1012
Partly — owned controlled entities - 70
Dividends received/receivable 3373 74
Trust distribution -~ Foint venture entity 114 2,980
Project management fee — Joint venture entity 1,600 1,500
Property management fees — Wholly owned controlled entities 300 78
Administration fees - Wholly owned controlled entities 35 16
- Partty owned controlled entities 33 35

— Joint venture entity B 7

Percentage of equity interest
Details of equity interests held in controlled eatities are set out in Note 24; and in joint venture entities are set out in Note 235,
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NOTE 31 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

{u)} Financial Risk Management
The Group’s financial instruments consists mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable, loans to and from subsidiaries,

morigage loans, other loans and leases.

The main purpose of non-derivative finaacial instruments is to fund the Group's acquisition of investment property and for the Group's
property development operations.

The Group does not utilise derivatives for any hedging purposes.

(1) Treasury Risk Management

The Board of Directors meet on a regular basis to analyse financial risk exposure and to evaluate reasury management strategies in the
context of the most recent econoemic conditions and forecasts nnd eperational results; and the impact these may have on the Group’s
operations in the light of the debt fevels within the Group. The overalt risk management strategy seeks to assist the consolidated group in
meeting its financial target, whilst minimising potential adverse effect on financial performance. The risk management policies include
eredit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.

(ii) Financial Risk Exposures and Management
The main risk the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate sk, liguidity risk and credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk
Intesest rate risk is managed with a mixture of fixed and variable rate debt. At 30 June 2009, approximately 58% of group debt is fixed. It
is the policy of the group io keep between 70% and 100% of debt on fixed interest rates. For further details on interest rate risk, refer Note

31(b)(i) and (iii).

Liquidiry Risk ]
The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate unutilised borrowing facilities are
maintained, and refinance options are negatiated and available at least 3 months prior to the maturity of any borrowings.

Credit Risk

The maximum expesure 1o credit risk at balance date ta recognised financial assets, is the carrying amount, net of any provisions far
impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements, At balance date, $0.00m included in
receivables is due from a related joint venture for construction contract services. The construction is funded by a bank construction loan

facility.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis and is reviewed regularly by the Board. It arises from exposures to customers, both external and
related and deposits with financial institutions.

‘The Board manilors credit risk by assessing the rating quality and liquidity of counterpariies, where only banks with an ‘A’ rating are
utilised; and all potential external customers are rated for credit warthiness taking into account their size, market position and financial
standing. The Group's investment in ather entities are not rated by external credit agencies. The amount of investments in these entities is
limited by the Board t¢ an acceptable amount based on the Board's assessment of the projected retorn of the investment and the size and
financial standing of the investee.

The credit risk for counterparties included in trade and other receivables at 30 June 2009 is detailed below:-

Consolidated The Company
2008 2008 2009 2008
81000 $'000 $t000 57000
Trade and other receivables
Counterparties not rated 7414 4,081 25,031 16,692
AA rated counterparties - - 3 13
7.414 4,081 25,034 16,705

The consolidated group has material expesure to the following group of receivables:
- Related joint venture entitics and associates 86%
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NOTEE 33 — FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d}

(b)

Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Instrument Composition and Maturity Analysis
The tables below reflect the undiseounted contractual settlemeat terms for financial instruments of o fixed period of maturity, us well as
management’s expectations of the scitlement peried for all other financial instrumenis, As such, the amounts may not reconcile to the

balance sheet.

Consolidated Group

(M

{ii)

(1

(i)

2009

Financial Asscis
Cash assels
Receivables
Financial assets
Total Financial
Assets

Financial

Liahilitics

Trade and other payables
Amousts payable — related
parties

Bank loans and overdraft
Loans frem other entities
Tosal Financial

Liabilities

Net exposure

2008

Financial Assets
Cash assets
Receivables
Financial assets
Total Financial
Assets

Financial

Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Amounts payable - related
parties

Bank loans and overdraft
Loans from other entities
Total Financial

Liabilities

Net exposure

Fixed Interest Rate

Maturing Weighted
Non-Interest Average
Floating 1 Year or 1tn05 Bearing Interest Rate
Interest Less years Total
Rate
$000 $000 $°000 000 #7000 %
1,912 - - - 1.912 3.16
- - - 7414 - -
- - - 36 36 -
1,912 - - 7,450 7,450
- - - 4,806 4,806
24,085 11 27,745 - 51,841 628
- 2,121 700 3,187 6,008 3.98
24,085 2,132 28445 7.993 62,655
(22,173) (2,132) (28.445) (543) {55.203)
5000 Fo00 $7000 $000 57000 %o
2,955 - - - 2,935 7.06
. . 4,081 4,081 -
- - - 36 36 -
2,955 - - 4,117 7,072
- - - 3,586 3,586 -
- - 703 703
10,023 80 27,292 - 37,395 7.98
- 1,325 4 - i,725 o
10,023 1,405 27,692 4,291 43,411
(7.068) (1,405) (27,692) (4,291) (36,339)
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NOTE 33 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Cont’d)

The Company

(i

(i)

(in)

2009

Financial Asscts
Cash assets
Receivables — related
entities

- Other entities
Financial assets
Total Financial
Assels

Financial

Liabititics

Trade and other payables
Loans [rom other entities
Total Finaneinl
Liabilities

Net exposure

2008

Financial Assets
Cash assets
Receivables — related
entities

- Other entities
Financial assets
Total Financial
Assets

Financial

Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Loans from other entities
Total Financial
Liabilities

Net exposure

Fixed Interest Rate

Trade and other puyables are expected to be paid as follows:-

Less than 6 months
1105 years

Maturing Weighted
Non-Inlerest Average
Floating 1 Year or 1to§s Bearing Interesi Rate
Interest Less years Total
Rate
57800 $7000 $'000 $ 000 37060 G
1,389 - - - 1,389 3.9
- - 11,424 13,553 24,979 9.0
- - - 1,777 1,777 -
1,389 - 11,426 15,330 28,145
- - - 274 274
- 3,740 700 - 4,440 3.08
- 3,740 700 274 4,714
1,388 (3,740} 10,726 15,056 23,431
$°000 $000 $000 1000 5000 %
2,466 - - - 2,466 7.2
- - 7,558 9,062 16,620 9.0
- - - 85 85 -
- - - 50 50 -
2,466 - 7,558 9,197 19,221
- - - 423 423 -
- 1,325 400 - 7,725 9.77
- 1,325 400 423 2,148
2,466 {t,325) 7,158 8,774 17,073
Consolidated The Company
2009 204 2009 2008
$000 $700 $000 $1000
4,806 3,586 274 423
- 705 - -
4,806 4,201 274 423
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NOTE 31 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
(i1)  Net Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Valuation approach
Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined by the consolidated entity an the following basis:

Recognised financial instruments,

Monetary financial assets and liabilities not readily traded in an organised financial market are determined by valuing them ai the
present value of contractual future cash flows an amounts due from customers or due to suppliers. The carrying amounts of bank
term deposits, irade debtors, other debtors, bank overdrafts, accounts payable, bank [oans, dividends payable and employee benefits
approximate net foir value :

The valuation of financial instrumnents reflects the estimated amounts which the consalidated entity expects to pay or receive to
lerminate the contracts, or replace the contracts at their current market rates as at reporting date. This is based on independent
market guotations and determined using standard valuation technigues

The carrying amounts and net fair values of financial assets and liabilities as at the reporting date are as follows:

2009 2008
Carrying Net Fair Carrying Net Fair
Amount Value Amount Yalue
$*000 10060 $7000 $000

Financial Assets
Cash assets 1,912 1,812 2,955 2,955
Receivables 7.414 7414 4,081 4,081
Investment praperty 73,000 73,000 37,935 37,935
Investments — other 36 36 36 36
Financial liabilities
Payables 4,806 4,806 4,291 4,291
Bank loans 51,658 51,658 37,357 37,357
Loans from related and other entities a,008 6,008 1,763 1,763

Cash assets are readily traded on organised markets in o standardised form. Al other financial assets and liabilities are not readily

traded on organised markets in a standardised form.

(iii) Sensitivity Analysis

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has performed sensitivity analysis relating 1o its exposure to interest rate risk at balance date. The seasitivity analysis
demanstrates the effect on the current year resulis and equity which could result from a change in this risk.

Al 30 June 2009, the effect on profit and cquity as a result of changes in the interest rate, with all other variable remaining constant

would be as follows:-

Consolidated Fhe Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$°000 $°000 $1000 $'000
Change in Profit
- Increase in interest rate by 1% (261) (90} (15} 7
- Decrease in interest rate by 1% 261 90 i5 (7N
Change in Equity
- Increase in interest rate by 15 (254) (96) {15} 7
- Decrense in interest rate by 1% 254 90 15 (M

The above interest rate sensitivity analysis has been performed on the assumption that alk other variables remain unchanged.
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NOTE 32 - NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are nat mandatory for 30 June 2009 reporting periods and
have not been sdopted in preparing the financial staterments at reporting date. The consolidated eatity's and puarent entity's assessment of
the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below.

(1) Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Starements and AASB 2007-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
Srom AASE 101

The revised AASB 101 that was issued in September 2007 is applicable for annuzl reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2009.
[t requires the presentation of a statement of comprehensive income and makes changes to the statement of changes in equity, but will not
affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial staiements, If an entity has made a prior period adjustment or has reclassified items
in the financial statements, it will need to disclose a third balance sheet (statement of financial position), this one being as at the beginning
of the comparative period.

(t1) AASE 8 Operating Segments and AASB 2007-3 Amendnients to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 8

AASB 8 and AASB 2007-3 are effective for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009, AASB 8 will result in a
change in the approach to segmeni reporiing, as it requires adoption of a "management approach" to reperting on the finaneial
performance, The information being reported will be based on what the key decision-makers use internally for evaluating segment
performance and deciding how 1o allocaie resources to operating segments. The consolidated entity has nat yet decided when to adopt
AABB 8. Application of AASB B may result in different segments, segment results and different type of information being reperied in the
segment nole of the financial report, However, it will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(iii) Revised AASB 3 Business Combinations, AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and AASB 2008-3
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 3 and AASB 127

Revised accounting standards for business combinations and consolidzted financial statements were issued in March 2008 and are
operative for annunl reporting perieds beginning on or afier 1 July 2009, bui may be applied earlier. The consolidated entity has not
applied the revised siandards in the current period. The new rules generally apply only prospectively to transactions that occur after the
application date of the standard. Their impact will therefore depend on whether the consolidated entity will enter inic any business
combinations or other transactioas that affect the level of ownership held in the controlled entities in the year of initial applicaiion.

(iv) AASB 2008-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Conirelled Entity
ar Associate

In July 2008, the AASB approved amendments 0 AASB 1 First-time Adoprion of International Financial Reporting Standards and AABS
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. The new rules will apply to financial reporting periods commencing on or after 1
Junuary 2009, The consolidated entity will apply the revised rules prospectively from 1 July 2009, After that date, all dividends received
from investments in subsidiaries, joinily controlled entities or sssociates will be recognised as revenue, even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, but the investments may need to be tested for impairment as a result of the dividend payment.

(v} AASB 123 Borrowing costs and AASB 2007-6 Amendmenis 1o Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASD 123

The revised AASB 123 has removed the option of expense all borrowing costs and will therefore require the capitalisation of all borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, consiruction or production of a qualifying asset. Management has determined that there will be
no effect on the Group as a policy of capitalising qualifying borrowing costs has been maintained by the Group.

(v) AASB Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

AASB-I 15 waus issued in July 2008 and applies to reporting perieds commencing on or after 1 January 2009. The interpretation provides
guidance on determining whether an agreement is a construction coatract, an agreement for the rerdering of services or for the sale of
goods. The consolidated eatity intends 1o apply the interpretation from 1 July 2009. Application of the interpretation will have no
significant impact on the cansolidated entity’s or the parent entity’s {inancial stalements.

NOTE 33 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

During the year, a significant portion of the Group's operations resulted from a construction contract with a related joiat veniure eniity in
relation 10 the eatity’s Greenway Supacenta development which was completed in early 2009,

NOTE 34 - EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

On 8 September 2009 Metroland Funds Management Pty Limited {wholly owned subsidiary} wus granted an Australian Financial Services
Licence.

On 16 September 2009 the Group announced that Metroland Funds Management Pty Limited had entered inta Heads of Agreement with
Ausbae (NSW) Pty Lid and Heng } Ausiralia Pty Limited to acquire 61-79 Quay Street, Haymurket for a consideration of $38.38m for
develapment. A unit trust called Metro Plaza Central Unit Trust will be established with Ausbao haviag 51% interest, Metroland Funds
Munagement Pty Limited 25% and Heng J1 Austrulia Pty Limited 24%. Ausbao (NSW) Pty Limited is n wholly owned subsidiary of
Beijing Capital Developments Holdings Group co. LId which is the largest developer in Beijing and the fourth largest in China,

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since 30 June 2009 that have significantly affected, or may significantly affect:
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(d) the consolidated eatity’s operations in future financial years, or
(e) the results of those operations in future financial years, or
(F) the consolidated entity’s state of affairs in future financial years.

NOTE 35 - COMPANY DETAILS

The registered office of the company is:
Metroland Australia Limited

Level 4, 45 Murray Sireet

Pyrmont NSW 2009

The principal place of the business is:
Metroland Australia Limited

Level 4, 45 Murray Street

Pyrmont NSW 2009
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DIRECTORS® DECLARATION

The directors of the Company declare that:
I, the {inancial statements and notes, as set oul on pages 13 to 47 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, and:
(a) comply with Accounting Stundards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; und

(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2009 and of the performance for the year ended on that date
of the Company and consolidated entity;

2. in the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the consolidated entity will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable.

The dircctors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by Section 295A of the
Corporations Act 2001.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Lo

Frank Shien
Director

Dated at Sydney this 30th day of September 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF METROLAND AUSTRALIA LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL REPOR'T

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Metroland Australia Limited (the Company) and the consolidated
entity, which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2009, and the income stalement, statement of changes in equity and
cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes
and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the Company and the entities it controlled at the year's
end or from time to time during the year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001,
This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 1, the directors also
state in accordance with AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian equivalent to
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) ensure that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and
notes, comply with IFRS.

The directors also are responsible for preparing and presentation of the remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’
report in accordance with the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Australiean Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements
refating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial reportL.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks and material misstatement
of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report,

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or management.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our andit opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We have given
to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the directors’
report. In addition to eur audit of the financial report we were engaged to undertake services disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. The provision of these services has not impaired onr independence.




AUDIT OPINION

1. In our opinion, the financial report of Metroland Australia Limited and its Controlled Entities is in accordance with:

(2) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2009,
and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and
(it} complying with Australian Accounting Standards {including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the

Corporations Regulations 2001,
{b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
Without qualification to the conclusion expressed above, attention is drawn to the following matter:

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY REGARDING CONTINUATION AS A GOING CONCERN

Without qualification to the opinion expressed above, we draw attention to Note 1 ‘Going Concern’ in the financial report
which identifies that the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by $25m as at 30 June 20090. Accordingly
there is significant uncertainty as to whether the economic entity will be able to continue as a going concern and whether it
will realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial
report.

REPORT ON REMUNERATION REPORT

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in page 9 of the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2009. The
directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with
section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based
on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

AUDITOR’S OPINION

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Metroland Australia Limited for the year ended 30 June 2009, complies with
section 300A of the Corparations Act 2001,

GOULD RALPH ASSURANCE
Chartered Accountants

MALCOLM BEARD M.Com. F.C.A.
Partner

Dated at Sydney this 30th day of September 2009
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ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere in
this report.

1. Shareholding

{(a) Distribution of shareholders (as at 14 September 2009)

NUMBER OF

CATEGORY SECURITYHOLDERS
Shares

Ordinary Options

1 - 1,000 39 186

1,008 - 5,000 122 279

5,008 - 10,000 82 118

10,001 - 100,000 313 135

100,001 - Over 121 38

677 756

{b) The number of shareholdings less than a marketable parcel at 14 September 2009 was 208,

{c) The number of shares held by the substantial shareholders at 14 September 2009 were:-

Shareholder Number of Ordinary
Shares

Xue Jun He 15,000,000

Da Cheng Zhang 9,600,000

(d) Voting Rights
On a show of hands
- every member present in person or by proxy or attorney or being a corporation by its
authorised representative shall have one vote.

On a poll
- every member who is present in persen or by proxy or attorney or being a corporation by its

authorised representative shall have one vote for every share held.
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{e) Twenty largest sharcholders as at 15 September 2009,

Number of % Held of
Shareholders Ordinary Fully Paid Total Issued
Shares Held

I. Xue JunHe 15,000,000 12.02
2. DaCheng Zhang 9,600,000 7.69
3. Annie Duncan 8,220,000 6.59
4. Tanesia Holdings Pty Ltd 5,041,642 4.04
5.  Shirley Tan 4,300,006 343
6. LIL Cagital Pty Ltd 3,638,906 292
7.  Formbell Pty Lid 3,256,364 2.61
8. Wincute International Development Limited 3,025,000 2.42
9. Chepisow Properties Limited 2,820,000 2.26
10. Mr Peter Howells 2,816,601 2.26
11, NX Holdings Pty Lid 2,394,915 1.92
12. Comm-Asia Limited 1,975,000 1.58
13. Ms Lee Eng Qua 1,753,856 1.41
14. MLI} Holdings Pty Limited 1,664,300 133
15. CN Investments Pty Limited 1,531,024 1.23
16. Frank Teck Lun Shien 1,463,961 L17
17. John Wardman & Assaciates Pty Ltd 1,436,033 1.15
18, Seow Hwee Tan 1,384,000 L1
19. G HKluge & Sons Limited 1,375,000 1.10
20. Dawes Investment Group Lid 1,300,000 1.04

73,996,608 59.3

(f) Stock Exchange
The company is listed on the Australian Stock Exchange. The Home Exchange is Brisbane.
(g} On-market Buy-Back

There is no current on-market buy-back.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Metroland Australia Limited (the company) and the board are committed ta achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of
corporate governance. The bozrd continues to review the fzemework and practices to ensure they mect the interests of shareholders. The
company and its controlled entities topether aze referred 1o as the Group in this statement.

The relationship between the board and senior management is critical to the Group's long-term success. The directars are responsible 1o
the shareholders for the performance of the company in both the shart and the longer term and seek to balance sometimes competing
objectives in the best interests of the Group as o whole. Their focus is 1o enhance the interests of shareholders and other key stakeholders
and to ensure the Group is properly managed.

Day to day management of the Group's affairs and the implementation of the corporate strategy and policy initiatives are formally
delegated by the board to the Managing Director and senior executives. These delegations are reviewed on an annual basis.

A description of the company’s main carporate governance practices is set out below. The cempany has adopied the best practice
recommendatiens of the ASX Corporate Governance Council as set out in the Revised Corporate Governance Principles and
Recemmendations and all these practices were in place for the entire year, unless otherwise stated.

Boord of Directors
Role of the Board
The board’s primary role is the protection and enhancement of Jong-term shareholder value.

To fulfil this role, the board is responsible for the overall corporate governance of the consolidated entity including farmulating its
stralegic directions, approving and monitoring capital expenditure, setting remuneration, appointing, removing and creating succession
pelicies for direetars and senior executives, establishing and menitering the achievement of management's goals and ensuring the integrity
of internal control and management information systems. 1t is also respansible for approving and monitoring financial and other reporting.

The board has delegated responsibility for the aperation nad administration of the company to the Chief Executive Officer and execulive
management.

Board Processes

To assist in the execution of it’s responsibilities, the board, in September 2004 established an Audit Committee, The board has not
established any Nomination or Remuneration Committees.

An Audit Committee was constituted in September 2004. The hoard is of the opinion that due to the size compesition of the present board,
that a separately constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee is currently no: required. The company has not followed the bast
practice recommiendations 2.4 and 8.1 of the ASX Corporate Governance Council which recommend that the board establish a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, respectively. The averseeing of the appointment and induction process for directors and committee
members, and the selection, appointment and succession planning process of the company's Chief Executive Officer “CEQ", including the
setting of remuneration levels for direclors and senior executives is taken by the full board.

The Audit Committee has a written charter and mandate, which is subject 1o regular review. The board has afso an established framework,
cognisant of the siaff and eperational size of the consolidated entity, for the management of the consolidated entity including an
appropriate system of internal control, a business risk management process and the establishment of appropriate ethical standards.

The full board held four meetings duting the year. The number of meetings the company's board of directors and each board committee
held during the year ended 30 Fune 2009, and the number of meetings attended by each director is disclosed on page 6.

Independent Prafessional Advice and Access to Company Information

Each director has the right of access to all relevant company information and to the company's executives and, subject to prior
consultation with the Chairman, may seek independent professional advice from a svitably qualified adviser at the conselidated entity’s
expeiise. A copy of the advice received by the director is made available to all other members of the board.

Composition of the Board

The nares of the directors of the company in office at the date of this report are set ot in the Directors” Report on page 2.

The compasition of the board is determined using the fellowing principles:-

*  aminimum of five directors, with a broad range of expertise, both nationally and internationally;

*  amajarity of independent non-executive directars;

*  amajority of directors having extensive knowledge of the company's industries, and those which do not, have extensive experience in

significant aspects of financial management, or risk management of similar sized companies;
*  have a non-executive independent director as Chafrpersen;
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An independent director is a director who is not a member of management (& non-executive director) and who:-

¢  holds less than five % of the voting shares of the company and is not an officer of, or otherwise associated, directly or indirecily, with
a sharekolder who holds more then five % of the voting shares of the company;

¢ has not within the last three years been an employee in an executive capacity by the company or another group member;

= within the last three years has not been a principle or employee of a material professional adviser or a matecial consuitant ta the
company or another group member;

¢ is not a material supplier or customer of the company or another group member, or an officer of or otherwise associated, direcily or
indirectly, with a material supplier or customer;

*  has no material contractual relationship with the company or another group member ather than as a director of the compiny;

* s free from any interest and any business or other relationships which could, or could ressonably be perceived to, materially interfere
with the directors zbility to act in the best interests of the campany;

Chairman and Chicf Executive Officer (CE()

The Chairman is responsible for leading the board, ensuring directors are properly briefed in ail matters relevant to their role and
respansibitities, facilitaling board discussions and managing the board’s relationship with the company’s senior executives.

The CEO is responsible for implementing Group strategies and policies,

Nomination Process

The full board oversees the appointment and induction process for directors, and the selection, appointment znd suceession planning
process of the company’s CEQ. When a vacancy exists or there is a need for particular skills, the board delermines the selection criteria

based on the skills deemed necessary. The board identifies potential candidates, and appoints the most suitable candidate, and if required,
with advice from an external consultant. Board candidates must stand for election at the next general meeting of shareholders.

Performance Assessment

The board anoually reviews the effectiveness of the individual directors. The review penerales recommendaticns on the individual
directors which is vated on by the full beard. Birectors displaying unsatisfactory performance are required to retire.

The full board with the exception of the CEO also cenducts an annual review on the performance of the CEQ, and the senior executives
reporting directly Lo the CEQ and the results ere discussed at 2 board meeting.

The performance assessments above were carried out during the year.
Remunerstion Process

The full board is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the directors themselves, and the remuneration
of each director is governed by contract wherein each direclor provides a specific service for a fee and the reimbursement of expenses.

Remuneration levels are set to attract and retain appropriately qualified and experienced directors and senjor executives, and tukes into
account given tresds in comparative companies locally. Remuneration packages are currently of fixed semuneration, but may alsa include
performance-based and equity-based remuneration.

The remuneration structures are designed to asract suitably gualified candidates and to effect the broader outcome of maintaining and
increasing the consolidated entity’s net profit attributable to members of the parent entity. The remuneration structures take into accounl:-

= overal level of remuneration for each director and executive;
*  the exccutives’ ability to control the relevant segment’s performance; and
¢  the amount of incentives within each executives remuneration.

There are corrently no remuneration based an the achievement of specific performance hurdles or targets for executive directors and senior
executives, Non-executive directors also do not receive any performance related semuneration.

The baard considers that the above remuneration structure is generating the desired outcome, with the strong growth in profits in recent
years, The board will also consider performance-based and equity-based remuneration for executive directors and senicr executives as
incentives in enhancing the company’s performance.

Further information on directors” and executives’ remuneration, including principles used to determine remuneration, is set out in the
directors” report under the heading "Remuneration report”,

The board does not have 4 Retirement Scheme for non-executive directors or a Redundancy Scheme for senior executives.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has a documented charter, approved by the board. All members must be non-executive directors with a majority
being independent. The committee advises on corporate risk management and compliance processes; the consolidated entity's compliance
with all siatutory and fiduciasy requirements, and the establishment and maintenznce of a framework of internal control and appropriate
ethical standards for the management of the consolidated entity.

The members of the Audit Committee are:

*  Join Wardman, B.Ecom, FAIC -~ Independent Non-Executive {Chairman)
*  Eddie Lee, B.E,Civil B.S¢.Dip.Bldg.Sc ~ Independent Non-Executive
*  Steam Leung, LREA - Independent Non-Executive Director

Details of these directors’ qualifications and atlendance at audit committes meetings are set out in the directors’ report an page 6.

The audit committee has appropriate financial expertise and all members are financially literate and have an appropriste understanding of
the industries in which the Group operates.

The external auditars and the CEQ are invited to Audit Committee meetings ai the discretion of the commitiee.
The andit commitiee does not have a format charter as suggested by recommendation 4.3.
The responsibilities of the Audit Commitiee include reporting to the board on:-

*  reviewing the annual and half-year financial reports before submission to the board, focusing on changes in accounting paolicies and
practices, major judgemental areas, significant adjustments and ASX and legal requirements;

*  monitoring corporate risk and compliance processes, including an on-going assessment of the adequacy of internal control systems;

*  reviewing the company’s accounting ond financial reporting practices and controls, and compliance with the Corparations Act 2001
and ASX Listing Rules and ail other regulatory requirements;

*  reviewing the nominalien and performance of the external auditor and assessing whether non-audit services provided by the external
auditar are consistent with maintaining the external auditor’s independence;

*  addressing any matters outstanding with auditors, Australian Taxation Office, Australian Securities and Investments Commission and
finaricial instinitions. ' '

The audit committee will review the performance of the external auditors on an annual basis and will normally meet with them during the
year to:

¢ discuss external andit plans, identify any significant changes in structares, operations, internal controls or accounting policies likely to
impact the financial statements and to review the fees proposed for the audit work to be performed;

*  finulise half-year and annval reporting to review the results and findings of the auditors, the adequacy of accounting and financial
controls and to monitor the implementation of any recommendations made; and (o review the draft financial repart and recommend
bozrd approval of the financial report;

*  asrequired, Lo organise, review and report on any special reviews or investigations deemed necessary by the board.

External Auditors

The company and audit committee policy is to appoint external suditors who clearty demonstrate quality and independence. The
performance of the external auditor is reviewed annually.

An analysis of fees paid 1o the external auditors, including a hreak-down of fees for non-audit services, is provided in the direciors’ report
and in note 6 to the financial statements. 1t is the policy of the external anditors ta provide an annual declaration of their independence to
the audit committee.

The external auditor will attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer shareholder questions about the canduct of the audit
and the preparation and content af the oudit report,

Risk Muanagement

The board oversees the establishment, implementation and annual review of the company’s risk management system which assesses,
monitors and manages operational, finenciad reporting and compliance risks for the conselidated entity. The CEQ has declared in writing
ta the board, that the financial reporting risk management and associated compliance and control have been assessed and found to be
operating efficiently and effectively, The operational and other compliance risk management have alse been assessed and found to be
operating efficiently and effectively. Al risk assessments covered the whole financial year and up 1o the signing of the annual financial
report fer all material operations in the consolidated entity, and material joint ventures.
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Risk Management and Compliance Control

The board is respensible for the overall internat control framework, but recognises that no cost-effective internal cantrol system will
preclude all errors and irregularities. The board's policy on internal cantrol comprises the company’s internal compliance and congrol
systems, including:-

*  Investment Appraisal — Guidelines for capital expenditure include hudgets, detailed appraisal and review procedures, levels of
autherity and due diligence requirements where husinesses and property investments are being acquired or divested;

Comprehensive practices, have been established Lo ensure:-

*  capital expenditure and revenue commitments above a ceriain size obtain prior board approval;

*  financial exposures are controlled including the use of interest rate and eredit risk management;

business transactions are properly authorised and executed;

management systems are monitored and reviewed to achieve high standards of performance znd compliance wiih regulations;
the quality and integrity of personnel;

financial reporting, accuracy and compliance with the financiat reporting regulatory framawaork;

environmental regulation compliance.

Financial Reporting

The CEQ has made the following certifications to the board:
*  that the compuny’s financial reports are complete und present a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
condition and eperational results of the company and Group and ure in accordance with relevant accounting standards
¢ that the above statement is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and control which
implements the policies adopted by the board and that the company’s risk management and internal compliznce and control is
operating efficiently and effectively in all malerial respects.

Envirenmental Regulation

The consolidated entity's operations are not subject to any significant environmental regulations under either the Commonwezlth or State
legislation.  However, the board believes that the consolidaied entity has adequate systems in place for the management of it's
environment requirements and is not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to the consolidated entity.
Ethical Standards

All directors and etployees are expected to act with the utmost integrity and objectivity, striving at all times to enhance the reputation and
performance of the consolidated entity. The directors are satisfied that the Group has complied with its palicies on ethical standards,
including trading in securities.

Conflict of Interest

Directors must keep the Board advised, on an angoing basis of any interest that could potentially conflict with those of the company.
Wiiere the Board believes that a significant conflict exists, the director concerned does not receive the relevant board papers and is not
present at the meeting whilst the item is considered. Details of director related entities transactions with the company and consolidated
entity are set cul in Note 31,

Trading in General Company Securities by Dircetors and Employees

The following are key elements of the company's policy in the trading in the company’s securities by directors and employees:-

¢ identification of those restricted from trading — directors and senior executives may acquire shares in the company, but are prohibited
from dealing in the company’s shares or exercising options:

- except between seven and 14 days afier either the release of the company’s half-year and annual results to the Australian
Stock Exchange (“*ASX™), the annual meeting or any major announcement;
- whilst in possession of price sensitive information not yet released to the market.

*  raising the awareness of legal prohibitions including transactions with colleges and external advisors;

*  requiring details to be provided in intended trading in the company's shares;

*  requiring details to be provided of the subsequent confirmation of the trade

Continuous Disclosure and Communieation with Shareholders

The board provides shareholders with information using the Continuous Disclasure Palicy which includes identifying matter that may have
a material effect on the price of the company's securities and notifying them to the ASX.

In summary, the Continuous Disclosure policy operites as follows:
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*  the CEO is responsible for all communication with the ASX. Such maters are advised to the ASX on the day they sre discovered;

= the full annual report is available to afl shareholders should they request it;

¢ the half-yearly report contains summarised financial information and a review of the operations of the consolidated entity during the
periad. The half-year reviewed financial report is lodged with the ASIC and the ASX, and sent 1o any shareholder who requests it;

*  proposed major changes in the consolidaled entity which may impact on the share awnership rights are submitied to a vote of
sharehalders;

*  the external auditor is requested to attend the annual general meetings to answer any questions concerning the audit and the content of
the auditor's report;

The board encourages full participation of sharchelders at the AGM, to ensure a high level of accountahility and identification with the
consolidated entity's strategy and goals. Important issues are presented 1o shareholders as single resolutions,

The shareholders are requested to vote on the appointment and any changes to the aggregate remuneration of directars, the granting of any

options and shares 1o directors and changes to the Constitation. Copies of the Constitution are available 1o any sharehalder who requests
it
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